
Third United Nations Conference on the Law of the Sea 
 

1973-1982 
Concluded at Montego Bay, Jamaica on 10 December 1982 

 
 

Document:- 
A/CONF.62/SR.110

 
 

110th Plenary meeting 
 

Extract from the Official Records of the Third United Nations Conference on the Law of  
the Sea, Volume XI (Summary Records, Plenary, General Committee, First, Second and Third 

Committees, as well as Documents of the Conference, Eighth Session) 
 

 

 

 

 

Copyright © United Nations 
2009 



PLENARY MEETINGS

110th meeting
Monday, 19 March 1979, at 11.20 a.m.

Chairman: Mr. H. S. AMERASINGHE.

Opening of the eighth session

1. The PRESIDENT declared open the eighth session of the

Minute of silence for prayer or meditation
On the proposal of the President, representatives observed

a minute of silence for prayer or meditation.

Adoption of the agenda
The provisional agenda (AICONF.62170) was adopted.

Organization of work

2. The PRESIDENT reminded representatives that, at its
108th meeting, the Conference had adopted the recommenda-
tion by the General Committee that the negotiating groups es-
tablished by the Conference at its seventh session should re-
sume their work at the very outset of the eighth session, and
that special emphasis should be given to matters before the
First Committee during the first three weeks of the eighth ses-
sion, without excluding issues before other negotiating groups
(A/CONF.62/69,1 para. 5). On 2 March 1979 he had communi-
cated to delegations a tentative time-table for the work of the
Conference during the first three weeks of the eighth session.
As a result of discussions he had held with delegations and
with the Chairmen of the negotiating groups subsequent to the
preparation of the draft time-table, and as a result of sugges-
tions that Negotiating Group 2 should not meet before 21
March and that Negotiating Group 6 should not meet before
the second week of the session, the draft time-table had been
revised.
3. After reading out the schedule of work now proposed for
adoption by the Conference, he said that arrangements had
been made for a meeting for Negotiating Group 5 because, al-
though the Group had concluded its mandate, issues relating
to articles 296 and 297 remained outstanding.
4. Arrangements could be made for the Group of 77 and
other groups to hold night meetings and meetings on Satur-
days, if necessary. Requests for such meetings should be
submitted to the Secretariat as early as possible.
5. Mr. KOZYREV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics), re-
ferring to the President's comments on the work of Negotiat-
ing Group 5, said that his delegation was not under the impres-
sion that the Group had concluded its work.
6. The PRESIDENT drew attention to the statement made
by the Chairman of Negotiating Group 5 at the Conference's
108th plenary meeting.2 That statement had not been chal-
lenged. Nevertheless, a meeting of the Group had been ar-
ranged for the afternoon of Thursday, 22 March.
7. Mr. NJENGA (Kenya) requested that Negotiating Group

'See Official Records of the Third United Nations Conference on
the Law of the Sea, vol. X (United Nations publication, Sales No.
E.79.V.4).

1lbid. vol. IX (United Nations publication, Sales No. E.79.V.3).

8. The PRESIDENT observed that the Chairman of
Negotiating Group 2 had no objection to that suggestion and
that the schedule would therefore be amended accordingly.
9. Mr. VOLGA (Turkey) observed that the Conference's
work was still regulated by the decisions taken by the Confer-
ence at its 90th meeting on the report of the General Commit-
tee (A/CONF.62/62).1 He asked why no meetings had been ar-
ranged to discuss the important questions referred to in rec-
ommendation 6 of document A/CONF.62/62.
10. The PRESIDENT said that delegations would be in-
formed of arrangements for meetings on those questions as
soon as the Chairman of the Second Committee had com-
pleted his review of the situation.
11. Mr. ARIAS SCHREIBER (Peru) asked when the Gen-
eral Committee would meet.
12. The PRESIDENT said that he hoped to arrange for a
meeting of the General Committee during the fourth week of
the Conference.
13. Mr. ROSENNE (Israel) said that it might be difficult for
his delegation to attend the meetings of Negotiating Group 7
and the linguistic groups of the Drafting Committee which
were scheduled for the afternoon of Wednesday, 28 March.
14. The PRESIDENT suggested that it might be possible to
re-arrange the schedule in consultation with the Chairman of
Negotiating Group 7 and the Chairman of the Drafting Com-
mittee.
15. If there were no objection, he would take it that the Con-
ference approved the schedule of work as amended.

The schedule of work was approved.

16. Mr. CARIAS (Honduras), speaking as Chairman of the
Group of 77, said that, in joining in the approval of the
schedule of work, the Group of 77 had provided proof of its
readiness to adopt procedures likely to produce, in a short
time, the constructive results expected of the Conference.
Progress had been made in the search for generally accepted
formulas and there were broad possibilities of attaining the ob-
jectives of the Conference in various fields of the law of the
sea. Nevertheless, the situation as regards the international
regime and machinery for the exploration and exploitation of
the sea-bed and ocean floor gave cause for concern; the Group
of 77 was compelled to note once again, as it had done at the
109th meeting, on 15 September 1978,2 the existence of pro-
posed national measures and draft legislation which, although
presented as transitional or provisional, were contrary to ear-
lier positions adopted by the very States in which they were
being proposed, contrary to undertakings entered into as par-
ticipants in the Conference and in violation of international
law. Universal acceptance of the principle that exploration of
the area of the sea-bed and ocean floor beyond the limits of na-
tional jurisdiction and exploitation of the resources thereof



Eighth Session—Plenary Meetings

would be carried out for the benefit of mankind as a whole, as
its common heritage, were embodied in the Declaration of
Principles which had been adopted without dissent in General
Assembly resolution 2749 (XXV). That Declaration, arrived at
as a result of political agreement, was widely regarded as the
expression of existing international law with respect to the re-
gime of the sea-bed and ocean floor.
17. Universal acceptance of the principle that the area
should be explored and its resources exploited for the benefit
of all mankind, with particular consideration for the interests
and needs of developing countries, implied that there should
be an international regime with appropriate international ma-
chinery. Exploration and exploitation of the sea-bed and
ocean floor had never been part of the freedom of the high
seas, nor could such exploration and exploitation, aside from
a generally accepted international regime, have their basis in
any such freedom. There were no agreements, customs, legis-
lation or practices among States to that effect. In that connex-
ion, paragraphs 3 and 4 of resolution 2749 (XXV) should be
particularly borne in mind.
18. Any alteration in the normal course of the establishment
of the international regime would be unacceptable to the in-
ternational community, as was evident from the statements
made recently by many Foreign Ministers at the thirty-third
session of the United Nations General Assembly. The Gov-
ernments of the States members of the Organization of Afri-
can Unity, at their meeting at Nairobi on 3 and 4 March 1979,
had stated that African States firmly endorsed the declaration
of the Group of 77 at the Conference concerning the intention
of certain industrialized States to resort to national legislation
in order to carry out activities in the area illegally (see
A/CONF. 62/72). They deplored such unilateral measures
which undermined the legal bases of the common heritage and
jeopardized the current negotiations. The African States had
called upon all States to refrain from taking any unilateral
measures relating to the sea-bed area and to demonstrate good
faith in the delicate negotiations at the Conference.
19. It was important to point out that, apart from the serious
consequences that unilateral actions would have for interna-
tional relations, reliance on national legislation would not give
companies or entities involved in exploration operations any
security or rights recognized by the international community
with respect to the investments which that very legislation
was alleged to be trying to protect and encourage. Unilateral
legislation, parallel laws, reciprocal understandings and
market-sharing agreements could not take the place of a gen-
erally accepted international regime. They would create a
state of disorder which would be prejudicial to any normal de-
velopment of operations that were initiated. The international
illegality of such operations would give rise to a complicated
series of controversies. In the circumstances, it was conceiv-
able that any interested party harmed by the activities of
national companies covered by a measure of unilateral leg-
islation might bring an action against such companies in any
jurisdiction where it had assets or adopt other appropriate
measures. It was possible also that countries producing min-
erals on land would incorporate in their contracts with foreign
investors clauses to oblige them not to participate directly or
indirectly in the exploitation of the sea-bed in the absence of
an international regime, under penalty of revision of such con-
tracts.
20. The Group of 77 would not agree to negotiate under un-
justified pressure. It would not agree to recognize de facto
situations or so-called acquired rights if one or more national
laws on the exploration and exploitation of the sea-bed and
ocean floor were adopted before the convention was con-
cluded. Statements by various representatives of industri-
alized countries to the effect that such proposals for unilateral
legislation on the sea-bed did not affect the Conference's de-
liberations were refuted by facts and by the situation of uncer-

tainty that had been created. It was the duty of the Group of 77
to draw attention to the grave danger that unilateral legislation
would present not only for the future of the Conference but
also for other multilateral negotiations between developed and
developing countries. The Group of 77 proposed that negotia-
tions in the Conference should be intensified and completed in
1979 with a view to signature of the convention at Caracas in
the spring of 1980. The Group would keep under constant ex-
amination the state of negotiations at the eighth session and at
the proper time it would express its views on the way to pur-
sue the Conference's deliberations. It would give particular
consideration to the possibility of using mechanisms permit-
ting a comprehensive examination of issues submitted to dif-
ferent negotiating groups, depending on the progress made in
the group concerned. The Group also considered that the rules
of procedure contained clear rules on the adoption of deci-
sions. It would therefore keep under review the best way of
applying the rules for the adoption of the various chapters of
the convention and for its signature at Caracas.
21. Mr. RICHARDSON (United States of America) ex-
pressed his delegation's hopes that the Conference would
make significant progress towards the common goal at its cur-
rent session.
22. He did not wish to precipitate a debate on the issue of na-
tional sea-bed mining legislation or to repeat his delegation's
previous statements on the subject; but there were a few key
points which merited repetition. In the first place, it was not
anticipated that deep sea-bed mining on a commericial scale
would be feasible before 1985 at the earliest. That was far be-
yond any of the target dates set for the completion of the Con-
ference. The legislation being contemplated by his Govern-
ment would not permit any licences to be granted before 1 July
1982. The three-year difference in dates was designed to give
the consortia concerned enough time to make their definite
plans.
23. When technology was discussed in international forums,
it was often insufficiently emphasized that technology could
be applied only by people with a certain knowledge. The lead
times involved in the new technology for deep-sea mining
were very long: there were a number of large capital items to
be acquired and, in the absence of a legal framework, defer-
ment of operations would inevitably result in a dispersal of the
teams of people with the requisite knowledge. It should be
remembered, in that connexion, that the world community as
a whole had an interest in obtaining early access to the re-
sources of the deep sea-bed and that the only people in the
world who were at present willing to risk the investment
needed to develop the capacity to reach the resources of the
deep sea-bed were to be found in a handful of companies that
had formed consortia for the purpose.
24. He wished to emphasize that the legislation con-
templated by his Government would not in any way be incon-
sistent with the regime that the Conference was seeking to
create. No country—certainly not his own—would prefer na-
tional legislation to an international regime. Everyone hoped
that the Conference would succeed in establishing an Interna-
tional Sea-Bed Authority to control the mining operation.

25. With respect to the purely legal issue, he was obliged to
comment on a statement made some days earlier by the previ-
ous Chairman of the Group of 77 to the effect that the prepara-
tion of legislation did not conform to the expected principles
and ethical standards of parties to international negotiations.
His Government categorically rejected that statement, since it
was not aware of any grounds in international law or conduct
for the thesis that the preparation of legislation ran counter to
ethical standards.

26. Companies could not be expected to suspend the devel-
opment of technology simply because the Conference was
lasting an extremely long time. They were unable to continue



110th meeting—19 March 1979

without a legal framework and no one could guarantee that an
international regime would, in fact, be established. If such a
regime were established, the earlier legal framework would be
superseded. If it were not, there would be a continuing need
for a substitute legal framework.
27. The best solution to the problem was, of course, to press
on with the Conference and bring it to a successful conclusion.
28. The PRESIDENT said that, at the last meeting of the
previous session, he had appealed to all delegations for pa-
tience and for a stay of execution. Whatever the position
under international law, he did not think that any nation in the
world could at the present juncture be indifferent to world
opinion. It was important that no nation, however powerful,
should give the impression that it was trying to substitute its
own will for that of the international community.
29. There was a gentleman's agreement in the rules of pro-
cedure of the Conference that a consensus would be sought, at
least with regard to central issues. That agreement imposed on
all delegations the duty to avoid independent action both in-
side and outside the Conference, since decisions taken out-
side could well be considered as a repudiation of the consen-
sus arrangement.
30. He hoped that the statement by the representative of the
United States of America would provide some reassurance to
participants, and would help to maintain the atmosphere of
friendly co-operation which had hitherto prevailed in the ne-
gotiations.
31. Mr. WOLFF (Federal Republic of Germany) said that he
wished to repeat his Government's view that legislation reg-
ulating the collection of manganese nodules by nationals of the
Federal Republic of Germany from the sea-bed beyond the
limits of national jurisidiction was not contrary to international
law.
32. Past events had proved that national legislation relating
to matters being dealt with in the Conference in no way pre-
vented progress in reaching agreement.
33. National legislation was not intended as a substitute for
the desired convention. Any such legislation would be of an
interim nature and would cease to have effect on the day the
convention came into force. He wished to reiterate that his
delegation was deeply interested in the conclusion of such a
convention.
34. Mr. ROSENNE (Israel) said that the only references to
the settlement of disputes relating to the area were those to be
found in article 158, paragraph 2 iii of the informal composite
negotiating text,3 concerning the selection of 11 members of the
Sea-Bed Disputes Chamber by the Assembly—the future of
which was itself in doubt—and in revised article 160 appearing
in document NG3/4,4 concerning the power of the Council to
initiate certain proceedings on behalf of the Authority and to
make recommendations on the basis of certain findings by that
Chamber.
35. However, there was nothing in part XI itself of the
negotiating text regarding the jurisidiction of any of the dis-
pute settlement organs in relation to the settlement of disputes
between States concerning the area. At most, some aspects of
that jurisidiction might be obliquely deduced from a combina-
tion of provisions found in parts XI and XV and in annex V. In
article 158 and revised article 160, there was no mention of the
possibility of the Assembly and the Council being authorized
to request advisory opinions in general from any dispute set-
tlement organ, nor was there any mention of the possible role,
in the settlement of disputes involving the area, of commercial
arbitration through organs such as the International Chamber
of Commerce.

36. Since the question of the jurisidiction of the appropriate
dispute settlement machinery, including commercial arbitra-
tion, was a matter of great importance, perhaps even a "core
issue" as defined at the seventh session, his delegation re-
quested that the matter should be given further consideration
in connexion with the organization of the work of the current
session.
37. His delegation's position of principle on the settlement of
disputes remained as it had indicated at the 62nd plenary meet-
ing,5 and its current suggestion was a technical one designed
to facilitate the completion of the work and the clarity of the
future convention.
38. The PRESIDENT said that the matter of settlement of
disputes, with particular reference to commercial arbitration,
would be dealt with in the informal plenary meeting and in
meetings of the First Committee.
39. Mr. KOZYREV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics)
said that his delegation shared the concern of the Group of 77
regarding the unilateral activities now being proposed with
reference to the resources of the international area of the sea-
bed and that it supported the statement by the Chairman of the
Group of 77.
40. He had listened with close attention to the statements by
the representatives of the United States of America and the
Federal Republic of Germany, but he still believed that the
preparation of national legislation and unilateral activities with
respect to the international area of the sea-bed was, to say the
least, a manifestation of disrespect for the international com-
munity.
41. All representatives were agreed that questions of the
sea-bed regime, including the system for the exploration and
exploitation of sea-bed resources, formed an essential and in-
separable part of the single over-all "package" solution of the
principal problems of the regime of the seas. Thus, the
planned unilateral action appeared to be an attempt to compli-
cate the solution of the problems of the sea-bed regime and
even to undermine the international settlement of questions re-
lating to the use of sea areas and their resources on a mutually
acceptable basis.
42. His delegation was, as previously, resolutely opposed to
any unilateral national legislation and practical activities
which would create difficulties for the work of the Confer-
ence. It would itself continue to make every effort to
strengthen co-operation at the Conference with a view to the
elaboration of a mutually acceptable convention on the law of
the sea, taking into account the interests of all States.
43. Mr. ENGO (United Republic of Cameroon), speaking as
Chairman of the First Committee and referring to the hard-
core issue of transfer of technology, said that one of the main
conditions demanded by the developing countries for accept-
ing the so-called dual or parallel system proposed by the in-
dustrialized countries was that the latter should accept, in the
words of the declaration adopted by the Council of Ministers
of the Organization of African Unity at Nairobi in March (see
A/CONF.62/72), "provisions for adequate financing, transfer
of technology and training of personnel", as a means of ensur-
ing that "the Enterprise shall be an effective operating organ,
capable of undertaking activities in the area at the same time
as other entities". Obviously, the idea was to make sure that
both sides of the system were equally viable.
44. For the purpose of negotiations at the Conference, tech-
nology appeared to consist of two main items, namely, the ac-
tual equipment or machinery that had been developed or de-
signed, and also the skills or know-how in the technical fields
involved in sea-bed mining operations, from contract negotia-
tion to the processing stage and perhaps beyond. The success
or failure of agreement on the issue of the transfer of those

3Ibid., vol. VIII (United Nations publication, Sales No. E.78.V.4).
*Ibid., vol. X, p. 158. 5 Ibid., vol. V (United Nations publication, Sales No. E.76.V.8).



Eighth Session—Plenary Meetings

items for the interim period of 20 years might well dictate the
fate of the system now being contemplated.
45. The acquisition of technology in terms of machinery or
equipment was easier to negotiate, since it was now common
ground that the Enterprise must be seen to be effectively
operative. But the question remained as to what methods were
to be employed. It had been agreed in principle that the Au-
thority should have the financial capacity to acquire ma-
chinery, even if the scope and the source of such capacity still
had to be worked out. An applicant could buy double the
amount of his needs and arrange for the Authority to have half
of that amount at the same price he paid for it. One danger was
that the applicant might buy too many over-sophisticated
models to meet a high standard when something equally effec-
tive might be obtainable at lower cost; or the product might
prove to be poor and untested. An optional clause, i.e. discre-
tion on the part of the Authority to receive or not to receive
the technology, was therefore imperative. In the unlikely
event that technology was developed by a State, a State
enterprise or a private entity not for the purpose of sale but for
its own use, some difficulty might arise as to who was to pay
for the cost of research and development. Nevertheless, those
were concrete situations that could be negotiated; in his opin-
ion, the type of technology involved did not present a real
problem from the standpoint of the question: "To whom must
the technology be transferred?" More important was the
question as to who must be entitled to a licence under the con-
vention. The indisputable answer was the Enterprise itself.
46. Some begrudged direct transfer to the developing coun-
tries; they firmly believed, however, that all should agree that
any entity, including a State, that was given access to the re-
served area must, if it was to be productive, have the requisite
technology, in terms of machinery and equipment etc., on the
same conditions as the Enterprise. Otherwise there would be a
risk of mismanagement of that area of the common heritage of
mankind. No one could, in all seriousness, contemplate such a
prospect. Given the proper political will, the matters he had
referred to were still comparatively easy to negotiate.
47. A far more complex question was the transfer of know-
how. In that connexion, how was an applicant to fulfil the ob-
ligations concerning transfer? The necessary skilled personnel
were difficult and expensive to obtain; yet they were a crucial
element in the whole matter. What use would sophisticated
machinery be to the Enterprise and to others engaged in activ-
ities in the reserved area during the 20-year interim period if
the know-how for the activities was either deficient or non-
existent? However, that important matter need not divide the
Conference, which must consider ways and means of in-
creasing the availability of technological skills. All delegations
were committed to: first, a viable Enterprise that would enter
into being as soon as activities commenced in the area and
would have sufficient ability for efficient exploitation, so as to
generate maximum benefits for the Authority; secondly,
fulfilment by the Authority of the important function of ensur-
ing effective participation in sea-bed activities by all mankind,
irrespective of geographical location or level of economic de-
velopment; thirdly, arrangements to ensure that the contract
area would be efficiently exploited in order to generate
maximum profits for the Authority as well as for the contrac-
tor in terms of the financial and other benefits to be derived
from the area.
48. In recent years he had been greatly troubled by the ques-
tion as to how the international community could find a solu-
tion to that problem in times of grave shortages and an uneven
distribution of the benefits of sea-bed technology, which many
now regarded as the common heritage of mankind. He had
dreaded the prospect that the Conference's labours in produc-
ing a historic convention might be frustrated by the tragedy of
lack of means to implement all aspects of the convention in a
cruel world of subjectivity and in a young, fragile international

community still plagued by conditions of war and ultra-
nationalism. The argument advanced by some industrialized
countries and by the international press to the effect that the
Authority and the Enterprise would belong to the developing
countries was an even greater cause for concern. The Au-
thority was being established for the benefit of mankind as a
whole and should not be treated patronizingly as a representa-
tive of the developing world. Nevertheless, it was essential to
avoid creating, even indirectly, conditions conducive to a
monopoly for those who had the technological and financial
capacity to carry out activities in the area. The time had come
to discuss the whole matter openly.
49. It was heartening that some of the industrialized coun-
tries had expressed a readiness to combat a serious problem
straight away. At the twelfth special session on the issues of
the law of the sea, at Nairobi in March, the Council of Minis-
ters of the Organization of African Unity had called for an
immediate programme for the training of personnel and had
expressed considerable concern about a probable monopoly
by nationals of industrialized countries in the technical fields
of mining and processing. Again, at a recent meeting at
Yaounde, sponsored by his Government and organized as the
annual Pacem in Maribus conference by the International
Ocean Institute of Malta, 80 experts had adopted the theme
"Africa and the Law of the Sea" and had, inter alia, consid-
ered what Africa would gain or lose from the convention now
under negotiation.

50. Initially, progress in reaching agreement on a treaty gov-
erning the exploration and production of minerals from the
ocean floor had seemed slow, but the negotiations had none
the less reached a stage in which delegations could be reason-
ably confident that they would be completed successfully and
that sea-bed mining would take place under an international
regime within a period of four or five years. It was also possi-
ble to foresee much of the framework within which such min-
ing operations would be carried out. A key role would be
played by the International Sea-Bed Authority, which would
be a resource management organization undertaking the di-
verse and complex range of activities that its broad respon-
sibilities would involve. For example, it would engage in sci-
entific research, review and act on applications for exploration
and mining, examine proposed work plans, select the mining
sites to be reserved for the Authority, develop regulations
governing the conduct of activities in the area and ensure that
mining operations would comply with those regulations. In
addition, it would be deeply involved in the process of transfer
of technology to the Enterprise and it would also collect rev-
enues.

51. The Authority must be ready to fulfil its functions when
sea-bed mining under the terms of convention commenced,
and plans should therefore be made to ensure that it would be-
come operational as early as possible after ratification of the
convention. It was perhaps too soon to begin organizational
planning, but it was not too early to start considering how the
Authority was to be staffed with the full range of experts that
would be required and where those experts would come from.
As an international organization, the Authority should of
course be staffed on the basis of equitable geographical distri-
bution and the problem of securing such distribution in the
early years of the Authority's existence called for immediate
attention. At the time, many of the developing countries did
not have a surplus of persons with the requisite training for
participation in the work of the Authority. Such a situation
threatened effective participation by most young countries in
activities in the area. Nearly all developing countries had suf-
ficient numbers of lawyers and people trained in non-
scientific and non-technical fields, but surely nobody would
want to see an Authority in which the lawyers and secretarial
staff all came from developing countries and the geologists,
engineers and oceanographers all came from industrialized



110th meeting—19 March 1979

countries. Unless immediate steps were taken to educate and
train people from the developing countries in the relevant sci-
entific and technical fields, across-the-board geographical bal-
ance in the staffing of the Authority would take a long time to
achieve.
52. Fortunately, there were two circumstances which should
make it possible to provide a balanced staff for the Authority
early in its operations. One such circumstance was that, if ac-
tion was taken immediately, sufficient time was available to
pursue an orderly process of education and training of citizens
from developing countries, since it would be several years be-
fore sea-bed mining could begin. The other circumstance was
that technical training programmes already existed to assist
students from the developing countries. So far, those pro-
grammes had not focused on fields directly related to sea-bed
mining, but it seemed likely that the necessary changes could
be made if the relevant needs were defined. Such technical
training programmes existed in one form or another in all the
countries with the greatest current involvement in prepara-
tions for sea-bed mining and, although most of the expertise in
sea-bed mining was doubtless to be found in the mining con-
sortia, oceanography, marine geology and other relevant dis-
ciplines were part of the curricula of several universities in the
industrialized countries. Support for assistance in training
students in sea-bed resource management could come not
only from the industrialized countries but also from the more
fortunate developing countries already engaged in such activ-
ities in conjunction with the production of their own re-
sources. Some of them might well be able to provide on-the-job
training and some might also be able to give financial support.
Consequently, it did not seem difficult to prepare students
from the developing countries for full participation in the work
of the Authority, if the task was undertaken without delay.

53. The Secretary-General could be requested to make an
up-to-date analysis of the probable composition of the Au-
thority's staff, and of its secretariat in particular, so as to give
an idea of the numbers of persons qualified in various disci-
plines that might be needed during, say, the first five years of
the Authority's existence. The Secretary-General could also
be requested to compile a list of the institutions that might
provide financial assistance for education and training in the
appropriate fields. Firm support from developed countries,
especially the industrialized countries, was indispensable.
Lastly, the United Nations could serve as a clearing house for
requests from developing countries and could help to secure
support for trainees and place them in suitable programmes.
Another step would be for the developing countries to take
stock of their manpower pools and seek appropriate educa-
tional training for their nationals. While some developing
countries already had trained personnel in the relevant fields,
many others had not and they would need to take the initiative
in seeking the help that they required.
54. Over the longer term, it would be desirable for many de-
veloping countries to increase the capabilities of their own
educational institutions and, in that respect, they would re-
quire some initial outside help. Some attempts were already
being made and there were prospects of directing further ef-
forts towards problems relating to the sea-bed. For example, a
programme in the United States was beginning to support the
development of a "sister universities" programme in which
United States institutions would help counterpart educa-
tional institutions in developing countries to start up or
strengthen educational facilities in marine sciences. Pro-
grammes of that type were needed not only to provide staff for
the Authority but also to achieve the even more important
long-term objective of helping to prepare developing countries
to participate in the full range of activities involved in the use
of marine resources. In short, reasonable ways of surmount-
ing the problem of preparing personnel from developing coun-
tries to take part in the work of the Authority and in other

marine activities could be foreseen, if the problem was tackled
immediately. On the other hand, if an immediate programme
was to succeed, it was essential to know what type of man-
power would be needed to make the Authority fully effective
in the technical field. He therefore requested the Special Rep-
resentative of the Secretary-General to ensure that the studies
in question would be carried out and he was sure that the Con-
ference could always count on the dedication and expertise of
the Secretariat in that matter.
55. Mr. ZULETA (Special Representative of the Secretary-
General) said that the requests made by the Chairman of the
First Committee would receive immediate attention. Fortu-
nately, the Secretariat had already been able to collect certain
information and, in the course of the session, it would be issu-
ing a preliminary report on the question of possible profes-
sional training programmes for persons from developing coun-
tries in sea-bed mining and related matters. Obviously, a
detailed and precise programme would depend on the nature
of the final agreement reached by the Conference on the struc-
ture and functions of the Authority and Enterprise, and on a
better knowledge of the numbers of qualified experts available
in the developing countries.
56. Mr. DE LACHARRIERE (France) said that the very
important statement by the Chairman of the First Committee
had drawn attention to fundamental issues that would cer-
tainly merit very careful consideration.
57. For the moment, his delegation wished simply to reiter-
ate its position that unilateral legislation on the matter of
exploitation of the resources of the sea-bed was entirely licit,
whether under customary law or treaty law. In particular,
nothing existed under customary law to prevent the adoption
of such legislation. Quite a different matter, however, was the
question of whether legislation of that type was desirable. In-
deed, his own country held the view that unilateral legislation
could only be a last resort to which Governments would be
reduced if the Conference failed to produce with sufficient
rapidity a sound convention that struck a reasonable balance
between all the interests involved. Consequently, his delega-
tion was prepared to co-operate in any efforts to arrive at the
adoption of such a convention with respect to the law of the
sea in general and to the international area of the sea-bed and
ocean floor in particular.
58. Mr. AN Zhiyuan (China) said he fully supported the
equitable and reasonable statement made by the representa-
tive of Honduras on behalf of the Group of 77, which had ex-
pressed opposition to any unilateral legislation by any country
concerning the exploration or exploitation of the resources of
the sea-bed. Following several years of negotiations, the Con-
ference was now entering the final stages of its work and, if
some countries decided to enact unilateral legislation permit-
ting their nationals to engage in exploitation of the resources
of the international area of the sea-bed, such a course would
be in breach not only of the relevant United Nations resolu-
tions but also of the practice of international law. Indeed, it
would damage the achievements of the Conference and ad-
versely affect the current negotiations. He hoped that all coun-
tries would respond to the appeal made by the Group of 77 and
refrain from such action and that, as a result of common
endeavours and co-operation, the present session would
achieve positive results. His delegation was ready to contri-
bute to that objective.

59. Mr. ARCULUS (United Kingdom) said it was extremely
important that the outcome of the present session should be
successful and, on the matter of deep sea-bed mining, he
would simply refer participants to the position expressed by
his delegation at the previous session.

60. With regard to the important question of transfer of
technology, his own delegation and others of members of the
European Economic Community had already made a con-



8 Eighth Session—Plenary Meetings

structive suggestion at an earlier session. Moreover, his coun-
try had reached positive conclusions on the question of train-
ing personnel, a question which had been mentioned earlier by
the Chairman of the First Committee, and would discuss the
matter later in the appropriate negotiating group. His Gov-
ernment was fully prepared to participate in appropriate ar-
rangements to help train prospective key personnel for the
Authority and the Enterprise during the period between the
adoption and the entry into force of the convention, so that
such personnel could acquire the necessary skills and the Au-
thority could play its role effectively under the convention
when the latter came into force.
61. Mr. MAZILU (Romania) said that he fully supported the
statement made by the representative of Honduras on behalf
of the Group of 77. The common heritage of mankind should
be exploited by all countries, and their participation in the ex-
ploration and exploitation of the international sea-bed area
was a fundamental question of principle. The Conference had
before it the important task of negotiating and adopting a con-
vention that would ensure such participation not only in sea-
bed exploration and exploitation but also in profit-sharing.
62. His delegation hoped that better results would be
achieved at the present session and that the text adopted
would reflect the interests of every country and a desire for
co-operation in the exploitation of marine resources for the
purpose of building a new international maritime order.
63. Mr. BENCHIKH (Algeria) said that it was not possible
to expect a successful outcome to the session or successful
implementation of the future convention if the Conference
failed to consider in great detail the very important question of
transfer of technology and of professional training in the ex-
pertise required for exploration and exploitation of the re-
sources of the sea-bed. As pointed out earlier, certain recom-
mendations had already been made in that connexion at the
special session of the Council of Ministers of the Organization
of African Unity held in March 1979. Accordingly, he sup-
ported the statement made by the Chairman of the First
Committee and requested that it should be reproduced in ex-
tenso in the summary record. In addition, the resolutions con-

cerning the law of the sea adopted at the recent special session
of the Council of Ministers of the Organization of African
Unity should be issued as a document of the Conference.
64. The PRESIDENT said that, if there was no objection, he
would take it that the Conference wished the statement by the
Chairman of the First Committee to be reproduced in extenso
in the summary record.

// was so decided.

65. The PRESIDENT said he had been informed that, in ac-
cordance with an understanding reached earlier concerning
the composition of the General Committee, the delegation of
Belgium should replace the delegation of Ireland in the ca-
pacity of Vice-Chairman of the General Committee. If he
heard no objection, he would take it that the Conference
agreed to take that course.

It was so decided.

66. Mr. KOZYREV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics)
drew attention to the fact that a seat had been reserved in the
Conference room for so-called Democratic Kampuchea; but
everyone was aware that a popular uprising had overthrown
the despotic regime of Pol Pot. The country had been pro-
claimed a People's Republic and now had a legitimate Gov-
ernment which enjoyed the full support of the Kampuchean
people, had received widespread international recognition and
was the only Government that could represent the Kampu-
chean people at the Conference. The Pol Pot clique no longer
represented anyone and, consequently, had no right to speak
at the Conference on behalf of the Kampuchean nation.
67. The PRESIDENT said that the Conference was con-
cerned with the legitimacy of representation by delegations
and not with the nature of the regimes that governed coun-
tries. He would arrange with the Chairman of the Credentials
Committee for the Committee to meet to resolve the matter as
soon as possible.

The meeting rose at 1.10 p.m.


	Main Menu
	List of Documents
	How to use List of Documents

	Master File
	How to use Master File

	Other Materials
	I. Preface
	II. Document Symbols
	III. Full-text Search
	IV. Tables
	A. GA Resolutions
	B. Conference Sessions
	C. Documents by Session
	D. Contents by Volume
	E. Negotiating Texts
	F. Chronology - LOS



	Main: 


